

# CITY OF MARLBOROUGH OFFICE OF TRAFFIC COMMISSION 140 MAIN STREET MARLBOROUGH, MASSACHUSETTS 01752

## **Traffic Commission Minutes**

The Regular Meeting of the Traffic Commission was held on Tuesday, September 30, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. in the City Council Committee Room, City Hall. Members present: Chairman - Police Chief Mark Leonard, DPW Commissioner John Ghiloni, Fire Chief James Fortin and City Clerk Lisa Thomas. Also present: City Engineer Evan Pilachowski and local resident Jim Joubert. Minutes taken by: Karen Lambert, MPD Records Clerk.

## 1- Minutes

The minutes of the Traffic Commission meeting of Tuesday, August 26, 2014.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED: TO APPROVE

## 2-New Business

# 2a) Request for parking restrictions on Brimsmead St. and Tremont St.

Chief Leonard received this request from Chris LaFreniere, Jr. Civil Engineer for the DPW. He said that both of these streets are in the process of being reconstructed and now have vertical curbing along the sidewalks. Since this was done, he has received complaints from residents that when vehicles are parked on both sides of the street it restricts two way traffic flow. He is looking for a parking restriction on one side of each street. It was determined that this should be sent to Engineering to review and advise on which side should be restricted. They normally look to see which side has the most parking spaces available.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED to REFER to ENGINEERING to review and make a recommendation at the next meeting.

# 2b) Communication from Councilor Irish, re: Parking Issues on Dalton Rd.

Councilor Irish sent an e-mail to Chief Leonard regarding a continuing problem with cars parking in the cul-de-sac on Dalton Street. Residents say that it has become a "daily occurrence" and that "they see the same cars every day, at the same time of day, for the same duration of time (usually overnight)". Often cars are parked on both sides making it difficult for residents to get out of their driveways. It is also a concern for children in the area riding bikes or scooters. He asked about restricting parking on one side or making it "Parking with Resident Permit Only".

Chief Leonard says he does not want to go down the path of "permitted parking". He has not looked at the area in question, however, he believes it to be a small cul-de-sac. He questioned if it is possibly an issue with a particular neighbor. Mr. Pilachowski went there today at 7:30 am and only saw one car there. He said it is actually a wide road. He advised that Engineering could take a better look at it.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED to REFER to ENGINEERING to review and advise as to their findings at the next meeting.

# **2c)** Parking concerns in front of Christopher Heights on Pleasant St.

Lt. Gould from the Fire Department sent an e-mail to Chief Leonard explaining a parking problem they had over the weekend. Christopher Heights had an annual cookout in the back parking lot which brought more people to the facility with reduced parking available. As a result, four cars were parked directly across from Station 2. They were unable to get the Engine out to respond to calls as the parked cars were in the way. When officers came to assist they advised that the street was not posted for no parking. There is only a sign that says not to block the intersection. Lt. Gould would like to see it officially posted as a no parking area to avoid any future problems.

Chief Leonard said that this definitely makes sense. Mr. Pilachowski advised that Engineering has already taken action. He found that there is an existing regulation in place, however, the signs were missing. Two new signs have been installed and all is in order.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED to ACCEPT and PLACE ON FILE.

# 2d) Parking concerns in the vicinity of 131 Pleasant Street.

This request came from Lt. Jusseaume to Chief Leonard. Lt. Jusseaume has received numerous calls from the resident at this address regarding parking complaints. It appears that there is only one no parking sign and the restriction is unclear. A brief discussion followed as to the actual restriction on each side and how it is marked.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED to REFER to ENGINEERING for further review to see what makes sense here and advise at the next meeting.

# Chief Leonard requested a motion to suspend the rules to discuss an item no longer on the Agenda. All in favor.

Tim Collins had requested an extension of the parking restriction on Causeway Street. We had addressed Causeway Street Extension but not Causeway Street. It hasn't been an issue but it makes sense to keep the no parking restriction in the area consistent. Chief Leonard submitted the revised regulation to the Traffic Commission for a vote. The new regulation restricts parking all year long rather than just during the summer months.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED to APPROVE the amended regulation. Chief Leonard will forward the regulation electronically to Lisa Thomas.

# **3-Old Business**

# **3c) Stop signs on Bigelow Street.**

Mr. Joubert, resident of Bigelow Street, was in attendance for an update on this issue. Chief Leonard explained that we have a potential funding source for the solar powered speed signs and that things are looking good. Quotes have been obtained and forwarded to the funding source. It looks like it is all coming together.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED to REFER: To TABLE.

# **3e) 413-417 South St. blind driveway.**

Chief Leonard wanted to provide an update on this issue so he included a copy of a letter from Mr. Pilachowski, City Engineer, in the agenda packet. The letter is the result of Engineering's review and gives their formal observations and recommendations which have been discussed previously. He advised that the blind driveway sign is in place, however, the mirror on the pole is not. Chief Leonard also said that it looks like some of the brush has been cut back.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED to REMOVE this item from the agenda. All issues relative to the Traffic Commission have been addressed.

# 3f) Extension of parking restriction on Hosmer St. near Memorial Beach.

Chief Leonard presented the amended regulation to the Traffic Commission for a vote.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED to APPROVE. Chief Leonard will forward the regulation electronically to Lisa Thomas.

# 3g) Parking issues on Liberty Street.

Chief Leonard presented the amended regulation to the Traffic Commission for a vote.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED to APPROVE. Chief Leonard will forward the regulation electronically to Lisa Thomas.

# **3h)** Communication from Councilor Irish, re: No parking signs on Harrison Place; weight and dimension restrictions on West Hill Rd.

**Update on Harrison Place** - Mr. Pilachowski provided a map of the area with notations regarding proper signage. He advised that the regulation is already in place and it is just the proper signs that need to be added and/or replaced.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED to replace and/or add signs as Tim Collins would suggest. All in Favor.

**Update on West Hill Rd.** – Possible signs indicating "narrow road" were discussed at the last meeting. Mr. Pilachowski advised that there is nothing in the MUTCD specifically for this issue. He passed out a map of the area along with examples of potential signs and their written descriptions. There were two potential advisory signs "Road Narrows" and "Hill Blocks View", however, these weren't really meant for this specific situation. He also included examples of "object markers" that would make trees or objects close to the road stand out. These are used more to guide people, especially at night.

Commissioner Ghiloni advised that West Hill Road has been redesigned and that they should have a better idea of what they are doing in the next few months. The road is currently 17 feet wide at its narrowest point. New roads are built with a width of 22 feet. The impact on trees and stone walls would be "tremendous". They are trying to figure out the best way to move forward. The capital plan will be submitted to the mayor in the next few weeks. Chief Leonard advised that there is already a special speed regulation of 25 mph here.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED to TABLE for now until more information is available on the reconstruction project.

# **3i) Plymouth St. parking restrictions.**

Chief Leonard presented the amended regulation to the Traffic Commission for a vote.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED to APPROVE.

# **3a)** Municipal off street parking regulation.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED: To TABLE.

## **3b)** High School parking regulations.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED: To TABLE.

## 3d) Traffic Commission rules and regulations update.

MOTION was made, seconded, duly VOTED: To TABLE.

That there being no further business of the Traffic Commission held on this date, the meeting adjourned at 10:40 am.

Respectfully submitted,

Karen L. Lambert Records Clerk Marlborough Police Department

#### List of documents and other exhibits used at the meeting:

-Meeting Agenda for Tuesday, September 30, 2014 (Including City of Marlborough Meeting Posting).

-Draft copy of minutes from 8/26/14.

-E-mail from Chris LaFreniere to Chief Leonard, dated 8/27/14, Re: Brimsmead St. & Tremont St. parking restriction.

-E-mail from Councilor Irish to Chief Leonard, dated 9/5/14, Re: 1200 Berlin Rd. & Dalton Rd.

-E-mail from Lt. Brian Gould (Marlborough Fire Dept.) to Fire Chief Fortin and Police Chief Leonard, dated 9/7/14, Re: Pleasant Street across from station.

-E-mail from Lt. Jusseaume to Chief Leonard, dated 9/9/14, Re: Parking complaints 131 Pleasant Street.

-Copy of a letter from City Engineer Evan Pilachowski to the Traffic Commission, dated 8/5/14, Re: 413-417 South St. – Sight Distance Concerns.

-Copy of regulation to amend the parking restriction on Hosmer Street.

-Copy of regulation to restrict parking on east side of Liberty Street.

-Copy of regulation to amend the parking restriction on Causeway Street.

## Additional Handouts

-Diagram of Pleasant Street indicating No Parking area in front of Christopher Heights.

-Map of Harrison Place with no parking areas indicated.

-Map of West Hill Road

-Sign diagrams – Object Markers, Road Narrows and Hill Blocks View – along with sign descriptions.